
MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING 

ClTY OF NASSAU BAY 
ClTY COUNCIL 
APRIL 14, 2008 

7 PM 

MEMBERS OF COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Don Matter and Councilmembers John 
Haugen, Bette Johnson, Ron Swofford, David Braun, and Mark Denman 

MEMBERS OF COUNCIL ABSENT: None (Councilmember Daniel Weber submitted 
his resignation from Council on March 17, 2008) 

OTHER CITY OFFICIALS PRESENT: City Manager John Kennedy, City Attorney 
Dick Gregg, Jr , City Secretary Pat Jones, Police Lieutenant Joey Cashiola, Finance 
Director Deborah Pattison, Public Works Director Phil Briscoe, Building Official Larry 
Boles, and Planning Commission Chairman Roscoe Lee 

PRESIDING: Mayor Matter 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Matter called the meeting to order at 7 pm, 

INVOCATION AND PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE 

The invocation was given by Scout Ian Kotter of Cub Scout Pack 848 Other Scouts read 
statements on citizenship 

Cub Scout Pack 848 then led the Pledges of Allegiance and was given a Certificate of 
Appreciation by Mayor Matter as thanks for providing these services for the City 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Matter announced that all members of Council were present 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 10, 2008 were presented for Council 
approval 

It was moved by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Swofford, that 
the minutes be approved 

Motion passed 6 - 0 

The Minutes of the Special Meeting of April 1, 2008 were presented for Council 
approval 



It was moved by Councilmember Swofford, seconded by Councilmember Denman, that 
the minutes be approved 

Motion passed 5 - 0 - 1 with Councilmember Braun abstaining 

OPENING REMARKS: None 

COUNCIL RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS 

Mayor Matter proclaimed April 13-lgth as "The Week of the Young Child" and presented 
the proclamation to representatives from S t  Paul's Early Childhood Program The ladies 
thanked the City and invited everyone to attend a fundraiser at the Church on April 17th 

REPORTS 

City Manager 

City Manager Kennedy referenced his regular reports (see Exhibits "A" and "B" to the 
minutes for these reports) provided beforehand to Council and offered the following 
additional comments 

The first phase of the park trail system is near completion The Garden Club will install a 
butterfly garden at one of the intersections of the trail We are getting a lot of favorable 
feedback and hope to continue expansion of the trail in the years ahead, M r  Kennedy 
said, 

Mr Kennedy said the new boardwalk on Lake Nassau is finished The fishing pier at the 
north side of the lake (Pocket Park at Lake Nassau) was also upgraded During this time 
of year, the parks are really being used, Mr Kennedy said 

In Swan Lagoon Park, Public Works crews are beginning a demolition project that 
Council approved in the Parks' concept plans several years ago They are taking up 
some of the old courts that are no longer used They w~ll  be replaced with green space 
for the short term, City Manager Kennedy said, as he closed his report 

City Attorney 

City Attorney Gregg said he had nothing to report at this time 

Committees 

Parks and Recreation Committee 

Reporting for the Committee, Roscoe Lee said they had voted not to allow fishing from 
the boardwalk That use is not compatible with folks trying to walk along the boardwalk, 
he said We are trying to keep the number of signs in Lake Nassau Park down but some 
may have to be put there We don't want bikes and skateboarding along the boardwalk 
either and hope that will be self-policing, he said 

Mr Lee said the ~rrigation system for the butterfly garden at the park trail should be 



going in soon We have had some conversat~ons with the YMCA about possibly 
conducting some classes this summer in our parks, he said Tennis lessons would be a 
good example, he said Closing his report, Mr Lee said they are looking at replacing the 
fencing at the baseball fields 

Special Events Committee 

Sheila Self from the Committee thanked everyone who helped out with the Easter event 

Fire Department 

Chuck Dickerson reported for the Fire Department, saying the department continues with 
36 members, 32 being responders and 4 as administrative A couple of the members left 
for school, he said The department will continue to work on recruitment with a goal of 50 
members Meetings are held each Tuesday night, he said 

Planning Commission 

Planning Commission Chair Roscoe Lee said the Commission met on April IS' and 
reviewed final plats for two of the Griffin parcels Parcel D is for the multi-family portion; 
Parcel J is the relocated Space Park Drive and the extension of Saturn Lane The 
Commission gave a qualified approval because some items were missing, Mr Lee said, 
and they are to be finalized before I sign the final plat 

Sub-committee on Flooding 

Mayor Matter said the curb inlet work in the Basilan Lane area has been completed 

Sub-committee on Dredging 

Councilmember Denman said we are still waiting on installation of channel markers 
There was a brief discussion about a couple of bumps with it being said that it will cost 
extra to take care of those because they were outside of the scope of the contract 

Sub-committee on NASA Parkway Enhancements 

Councilmember Johnson said that, wrth the coming of spring time, we have received a 
lot of favorable comments on the latest portion of landscaping along NASA Parkway, 
especially from those driving in from the Seabrook area Mrs Johnson listed the various 
sources of funding for the landscaping work 

Closing her report, Councilmember Johnson gave the latest lane closings on the bypass 
work 

Street Committee 

Economic Development Corporation 



Convention and Visitors Bureau 

There were no reports on these committees at this time 

Sub-committee on NBTV 

Councilmember Johnson said the committee met and is waiting on a draft report being 
prepared by a volunteer 

CITIZENS' HEARING 

Mayor Matter announced a Public Hearing for citizens during which time residents might 
address Council on any subject not on the agenda. (During the course of the meeting, 
citizens are allowed to speak on agenda items at the time the items are addressed by 
Council ) 

1 Michie Coldwell, 18603 Martinique, said Council refused to properly acknowledge 
three petitions, said the City prohibits views contrary to theirs, and commented 
on financing pertaining to redevelopment issues 

2 Jennifer Rice, 18311 Blanchmont, said Council should look at what their job is 
and quoted the First Amendment 

3 Don Johnson, 18327 Carriage Lane, said he was a former mayor and thanked 
Council for listening to this kind of "smoke and mirrors" and weighing your way 
through i t  You are doing a fine job, Mr Johnson said, 

4 Brad Bailey, 18646 Prince William, encouraged everyone to support the newly 
formed Community Association for Nassau Bay Enhancement (CANBE) whose 
goal is to beautify common areas of the City, 

No one else spoke and the hearing was closed, 

OLD BUSINESS: None 

NEW BUSINESS 

Council Acceptance of Resignation of Councilmember Daniel B. Weber 

It was moved by Councilmember Swofford, seconded by Councilmember Johnson, that 
Mr Weber's resignation be accepted 

Motion passed 6 - 0 

Citizen Input: 

Michie Coldwell, 18603 Martinique, said he went by Mr Weber's house and let him know 
that the Nassau Bay Citizens for Responsible Development "did not blow the whistle on 
him " 



Review and Acceptance of Final Audited Financial Statements and 
Accompanying Documents 

City Manager Kennedy introduced Robert Belt of Sandersen Belt & Knox, LLP and 
recalled that he was here at the February 25th meeting and presented the audit findings, 
Council accepted the findings in draft That acceptance was an important part of our 
getting ready to issue this year's certificates of obligation Mr Kennedy said we did issue 
the debt and received an extremely favorable interest rate The great interest rate is 
attributable to our good credit rating, contrary to what some in the City would have you 
believe Our debt ratio is less than 1% of our assets The Texas Municipal League 
advises cities to keep their debt ratios between 1% and 4%, so if anyone is thinking the 
City is wallowing in debt, we are not Our favorable audit also contributed to our 
receiving such a low interest rate on the certificates, Mr Kennedy said 

Mr Belt is here to answer any further questions Council might have It is now in a nice 
binder wlth a few typos cleared up The numbers are the same as when you accepted it 
at the February 25th meeting, City Manager Kennedy said 

M r  Belt said he was the managing partner with Sandersen Knox & Belt and previously 
presented the audit in draft form The only changes have been in formatting, and I am 
here as a formality for the final approval of the documents The City is in great financial 
shape, he said, and offered to answer any questions 

City Attorney Gregg clarified that this was the final audited financial statement 

M r  Belt said that it was 

Mayor Matter clarified that the numbers were the same 

Mr Belt said they were the same 

Councilmember Swofford asked Mr Belt if he felt the responses given by Staff to the 
management letter adequately answered the items brought out in the audit 

Mr Belt said they did 

It was moved by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Denman, that 
the final audited financial statements and accompanying documents be accepted, 

Motion passed 6 to 0 

Council Ratification of Staff Finding Regarding Affidavits Submitted on 
March 5, 2008 as an Initiative to Address a Specific Zoning Decision, 
Ordinance No. 02008-637, the Griffin PUD Ordinance 

The following is a copy of a letter sent to those seeking to circulate a petition on the 
above matter: 



March 11, 2008 

Nassau Bay Citizens for Responsible Development 
Robert L Ward 
Alma Ward 
Grace Martinez 
John Howland Cross 
Glenn E Blome 

C/O: J Cross, NBCRD 
2021 Harbour Drive 
Houston, TX 77058 
(Via registered mail) 

Re: Several Affidavits of Intent to Circulate a Petition Seeking 
Amendment of Ordinance No 02008-637, All of Which were Filed 
on March 5, 2008 

Committee Members of NBCRD: 

Pursuant to the advice of Andrews Kurth, LLP, the City's bond counsel, and City 
Attorney Dick Gregg, Jr regarding the affidavits seeking petition forms pursuant to City 
Charter, Article VI, Initiative, Referendum, and Recall, the City Secretary finds: 

1 That on the 5th day of March 2008, the City Secretary received five affidavits 
pertaining to this matter 

2 The ordinance proposed is an amendment to a zoning ordinance 
3 It is settled law in Texas that a referendum or initiative power, whether by 

statute or city charter, is not applicable to a zoning issue unless the entire 
zoning ordinance is the subject of the proposed election, This zoning issue is 
a specific zoning decision under the City's zoning ordinance and, therefore, 
no right to an election exists, 

4 Since no right to an election exists, there is no duty for the City Secretary to 
provide petition forms pursuant to the provision of the City Charter, 

5 ,  There is no further action for the City to take Nothing herein shall prevent 
Council from considering the sufficiency or insufficiency of the requests for 
an initiative Nothing herein shall require Council to consider the sufficiency 
or insufficiency of the requests for an initiative 

Sincerely, 

Pat Jones 
City Secretary 

cc: Mayor and City Council 
City Manager John Kennedy 
City Attorney Dick Gregg, Jr 



When called upon by Mayor Matter, City Manager Kennedy said City Secretary Jones 
was the agenda champion on this item and City Attorney Gregg was prepared to discuss 
the legal aspects of it, 

Mr Gregg said Texas law is very clear about the cumbersome nature of putting 
something like an individual zoning decision to a vote This is something that the 
Legislature decided was exempt from these kinds of provisions The only thing zoning- 
related that would be subject to an initiative or referendum would be the original time that 
a city's zoning ordinance is adopted or the repeal of that entire ordinance Texas law is 
very clear that individual zoning decisions are not subject to the referendum or initiative 
power, he said Based on that, this was ruled to be exempt from the provisions of the 
City's Charter that deal with initiative and referendum on ordinary ordinances 

Mayor Matter clarified that it did not qualify because it applied to piecemeal zoning 

City Attorney Gregg said the whole concept of zoning is that you will have a Planning 
Commission with people who have expertise in the field of evaluation and use of 
property and that you will take into consideration their recommendation and then make a 
determination on your own, with their input, for the highest and best use That procedure 
will not work in an electoral arena because there is no way for the individual voter to take 
into consideration the Planning Commission's input and expertise 

Citizen Input: 

Jennifer Rice, 1831 1 Blanchmont, asked for the case law numbers 

City Attorney Gregg said he would send them to her, saying that he had previously sent 
this information to Mr Cross, the named addressee 

Council voted unanimously to ratify Staff's finding regarding the above 

Resolution Authorizing Agreement Between City and Harris County for Use 
of Election Equipment for the May 10, 2008 City Officers Election 

City Secretary Jones read the caption of the resolution: 

CAPTION 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF NASSAU BAY, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ClTY AND HARRIS 
COUNTY FOR USE OF THE COUNTY'S EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES, STAFF 
AND OTHER SERVICES RELATING TO THE MAY 10, 2008 ClTY OFFICERS' 
ELECTION 

(Said Resolution is of record in Resolution Book No 16 of the City of Nassau 
Bay, Texas, being Resolution No R2008-1777 ) 

City Secretary Jones explained that various municipalities and entities in Harris County 
will be entering into similar agreements to use the County's e-Slate voting system for 
their May elections This is more of a housekeeping item and is similar to the 
agreements we signed for previous elections, Ms Jones said 



It was moved by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Denman, that 
the resolution be approved 

Motion passed 6 - 0 

Resolution Exempting Portion of Residential Market Value for 2008 Ad 
Valorem Taxes 

City Secretary Jones read the caption of the resolution: 

CAPTION 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF NASSAU BAY, 
TEXAS, EXEMPTING FROM 2008 AD VALOREM TAXES A PORTION OF THE 
MARKET VALUE OF A RESIDENCE HOMESTEAD AS AUTHORIZED BY THE 
CONSTITUTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, ARTICLE VIII, SECTION I-b, 
SUBSECTION (E) & (N); AND TEXAS PROPERTY CODE SECTION 11 13 

(Said Resolution is of record in Resolution Book No 16 of the City of Nassau 
Bay, Texas, being Resolution No R2008-1778 ) 

City Manager Kennedy said Harris County requires that we annually update our 
ordinance that provides residential tax exemptions 

Mr Kennedy reminded everyone that there was a City sub-committee that has dealt with 
the tax freeze issue as well as these exemptions a number of times over the years We 
aren't recommending any changes this year to those past recommendations 

City Manager Kennedy referred Council to a data sheet prepared by Finance Director 
Pattison showing how Nassau Bay compared to other cities of our size in the 2,000 to 
7,000 population Our exemptions compare very favorably to those offered by other 
cities, Mr Kennedy said, 

Ms Pattison went to the podium to answer any questions from Council 

Councilmember Johnson said she didn't have any questions but very much appreciated 
the data so comparisons could be made with other cities 

Finance Director Pattison pointed out that 60% of the cities don't offer any homestead 
exemption and 40% of the cities don't offer anything for disabled homeowners 

Mayor Matter asked M s  Pattison to go over what the City provides 

Ms Pattison said the homestead exemption is 1% of the market value, the over 65 
exemption is $20,000, and a $20,000 exemption for those who are disabled 

Councilmember Haugen asked with reference to other municipalities if the ratio to 
commercial and residential property was noted 

Finance D~rector Pattison said it was not noted here but she intended soon to get 
Council numbers on sales tax revenue 



Councilmember Haugen said he felt those numbers would be very helpful 

City Manager Kennedy said he felt the percentage of over age 65 homeowners is 
probably the highest in our region 

Ms Pattison agreed and said the amount of sales tax our City collects, due to its small 
commercial base, is probably one of the lowest in the area, 

City Manager Kennedy said he wasn't complaining about the older homeowners 
because he was quickly joining that age group 

Ms Pattison said the quantity of the overall exemptions had almost tripled since Council 
first adopted some of these rates 

It was moved by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Braun, that the 
resolution be approved 

Motion passed 6 - 0 

Resolution Reappointing a Relief Judge of the Municipal Court 

City Secretary Jones read the caption of the resolution: 

CAPTION 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NASSAU BAY, 
TEXAS, REAPPOINTING RELIEF JUDGE OF THE MUNICIPAL COURT, 

(Said Resolution is of record in Resolution Book No 16 of the City of Nassau 
Bay, Texas, being Resolution N o  R2008-1779) 

City Manager Kennedy said Winifred Weber had completed her first two-year term as 
relief judge of the municipal court While we have not had occasion to use her, we are 
required to have a presiding, an associate, and a relief judge for the court Staff 
recommends we appoint her to another two-year term 

It was moved by Councilmember Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Braun, that the 
resolution be approved, reappointing Winifred Weber as a relief judge for a two-year 
term 

Motion passed 6 - 0 

Any Action Resulting from Discussion of Real Estate Matters in Executive 
Session 

Any Action Resulting from Discussion of Economic Development 
Negotiations in Executive Session 

The above agenda items were listed on the agenda to be considered after discussion in 
Executive Session 



OTHER BUSINESS 

Meeting recessed to Executive Session at 7:45 pm with Mayor Matter reading from the 
posted agenda the following items to be discussed in Executive Session: 

§551 072: Deliberation Regarding Real Property - Discussion Regarding Real 
Estate Matters 

§551 087: Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations - 
Discussion of Economic Development Negotiations 

§551 071: Consultation with Attorney - Discussion of Pending Litigation 

§551 074: Personnel - 1) Discussion of Appointment of Relief Judge to the 
Municipal Court (this appointment was made in Open Session without any 
discussion in Executive Session); and 2) Discussion of Duties of City Manager, 

Meeting returned to Open Session at 8:30 pm 

NEW BUSINESS: Continued 

Any Action Resulting from Discussion of Real Estate Matters in Executive 
Session 

Any Action Resulting from Discussion of Economic Development 
Negotiations in Executive Session 

No action was taken on the above two items after returning from Executive Session 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm 
- 

Minutss approved as submitted and/or 
. I 8 . .  

P;,.D<2008.:, . , -  
. I 

amended this 12 - day of + 

Mayor 


